
 

 

 
 
 

CYNGOR BWRDEIS TREF SIROL RHONDDA CYNON TAF 
 

 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
Welsh Language Cabinet Steering Group 

 

 
A virtual meeting of the Welsh Language Cabinet Steering Group will be on the 

 6 October 2021 at 10.00 am 

 
Contact: Sarah Handy - Council Business Unit, Democratic Services (07385401942) 

 

 
 

 
ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
 

1. DECLARATION OF INTEREST   

 To receive disclosures of personal interest from Members in accordance 
with the Code of Conduct. 
 
Note: 
 

1. Members are requested to identify the item number and subject 
matter that their interest relates to and signify the nature of the 
personal interest. 
 

2. Where Members withdraw from a meeting as a consequence of 
the disclosure of a prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chairman when they leave. 

 

   

2. MINUTES   

 To receive the minutes of the Welsh Language Cabinet Steering Group 
meeting which was held on 19th July 2021.  

 

  (Pages 3 - 6) 

3. AN UPDATE ON THE NATIONAL EISTEDDFOD IN RCT   

   

4. WELSH LANGUAGE PROMOTION STRATEGY - ASSESSMENT   



 

 

 To receive and consider an assessment of the Council’s performance 
against the Welsh Language Promotion Strategy.  
 

 

  (Pages 7 - 12) 

5. URGENT BUSINESS   

 To consider any other business, which the Chairman by reason of 
special circumstances is of the opinion should be considered at the 
meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

   

6. DATE OF NEXT MEETING   

 To note the date of the next meeting of the Welsh Language Cabinet 
Steering Group as the 8th December 2021.  

 

   
CIRCULATION:  
 
COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCILLORS: 
 
Councillor G Hopkins (Chair) 
Councillor J Rosser (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor R Bevan 
Councillor R Lewis 
Councillor L Hooper 
Councillor E Stephens 
 
OFFICERS: 
 
Paul Mee, Group Director Community & Children's Services 
Christian Hanagan, Service Director of Democratic Services & Communication 
Gaynor Davies, Director of Education and Inclusion Services 
Andrea Richards, Temporary Service Director - 21st Century Schools and Transformation 
Wendy Edwards, Service Director – Community Services 
Steffan Gealy, Welsh Language Services Manager 
 
 
MENTER IAITH: 
 
Einir Sion 

 



 

 

 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNCIL WELSH LANGUAGE CABINET STEERING GROUP 

Minutes of the meeting of the Welsh Language Cabinet Steering Group meeting held on  Monday, 
19 July 2021 at 10.00 am at the Virtual. 

 
 

County Borough Councillors - Welsh Language Cabinet Steering Group Members in 
attendance:- 

 
Councillor G Hopkins (Chair) 

 
Councillor R Bevan Councillor R Lewis 

Councillor E Stephens  
 
 

Officers in attendance 
 

Ms A Richards, Temporary Service Director - 21st Century Schools and Transformation 
Mr S Gealy, Welsh Language Services Manager 

 
 

1   Declaration of Interest  
 

 

  In accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Councillor Rhys Lewis 
declared the following personal declaration of interest pertaining to the agenda 
and remained in the meeting when the item was discussed and voted upon:  
 

 “I am the Chair of Governors in Abercynon Primary School, a 
school referenced in the WESP report”.   

 

 

2   Minutes  
 

 

 It was RESOLVED to approve the minutes of the 22nd April 2021 as an accurate 
reflection of the meeting.  
 

 

3   Apologies  
 

 

 Apologies of absence were received from County Borough Councillors L. Hooper 
and Vice Chair J. Rosser.  
 

 

4   Welcome  
 

 

 The Chair welcomed County Borough Councillor R Lewis to his first 
meeting of the Steering Group. 
 
 

 

5   DRAFT WELSH IN EDUCATION STRATEGIC PLAN  
 

 

 The Council Business Unit Manager provided the Welsh Language  
Cabinet Steering Group Members with an overview of the reporting framework for the 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

 

Council’s Draft Welsh in Education Strategic Plan,   advising Members of the opportunity to 
comment on the draft WESP and the consultation proposed within, before consideration by 
Cabinet on the 20th July. Members were advised that subject to the decision taken by Cabinet 
it was intended that the Draft WESP would be further presented to the Steering Group prior to 
consideration by cabinet so that the working group could assist in a robust decision making 
process. 
 
 
The Council Business Unit Manager provided the Welsh Language  
Cabinet Steering Group Members with an overview of the reporting framework for the 
Council’s Draft Welsh in Education Strategic Plan,   advising Members of the opportunity to 
comment on the draft WESP and the consultation proposed within, before consideration by 
Cabinet on the 20th July. Members were advised that subject to the decision taken by Cabinet 
it was intended that the Draft WESP would be further presented to the Steering Group prior to 
consideration by cabinet so that the working group could assist in a robust decision making 
process. 
 
The Temporary Service Director 21St Century Schools and Transformation then provided 
Members with further detail in respect 
of the WESP report.  
 
Members were reminded that as well as the target to increase the 
percentage of year one learners in Welsh medium education, the WESP 
includes seven outcomes or areas setting out how Local Authorities are 
expected to improve Welsh medium and Welsh language education in their locality. The priorities are: 
 

1. Outcome 1: More nursery / three year old learners receive their education through the 
medium of Welsh. 

2. Outcome 2: More reception / five year old learners receive their education through the 
medium of Welsh.  

3. Outcome 3: More learners continue to improve their Welsh language skills when 
transferring from one stage of their statutory education to another.  

4. Outcome 4: More learners study for assessed qualifications in Welsh (as a subject) 
and subjects through the medium of Welsh.  

5. Outcome 5: More opportunities for learners to use Welsh in different contexts in 
school. 

6. Outcome 6: An increase in the provision of Welsh medium education for learners with 
additional learning needs. 

7. Outcome 7: Increase the number of teaching staff able to teach Welsh (as a subject) 
and through the medium of Welsh. 

 
Following a detailed overview, discussions ensued. The Chair thanked officers for the detailed 
overview and noted that the WESP has been the culmination of detailed, hard work by Officers, 
complimented with successful partnership engagement with external partners. The Chair was pleased 
to see the longer term view and noted that regular reviews will take place over that 10 year period.  
 
Another Member thanked officers for giving a detailed update and noted that in respect of outcome 5, 
it is important that learners are encouraged to use the Welsh language outside of school settings and 
in the local community. The Member noted the important challenge ahead in terms of getting learners 
to have the confidence to speak Welsh in local businesses and queried how officers were planning on 
meeting this challenge going forward. The Service Manager - Welsh Language Services advised 
Members that the 5 year strategy runs alongside he WESP and emphasised that the Welsh 
Government are eager for the outcomes to run alongside each other. The Service Manager 

Page 4



 

 

emphasised that they are currently in the process of developing a new 5 year plan, which will be ready 
by approximately next Spring. The new 5 year plan will be presented to the Steering Group as soon as 
it has been completed. In respect of local businesses and the challenge of encouraging learners to 
use the Welsh language in the local community, the Service Director emphasised that the service will 
continue to work closely with Council service areas and partners in the community  
 

 
 
 

Following discussion, Members RESOLVED to note the information provided in respect of the 
Council’s Draft Welsh in Education Strategic Plan.   
 

 

5 DRAFT WELSH IN EDUCATION STRATEGIC PLAN  
 
The Council Business Unit Manager provided the Welsh Language  
Cabinet Steering Group Members with an overview of the reporting framework for the 
Council’s Draft Welsh in Education Strategic Plan,   advising Members of the opportunity to 
comment on the draft WESP and the consultation proposed within, before consideration by 
Cabinet on the 20th July. Members were advised that subject to the decision taken by Cabinet 
it was intended that the Draft WESP would be further presented to the Steering Group prior to 
consideration by cabinet so that the working group could assist in a robust decision making 
process. 
 
 
The Council Business Unit Manager provided the Welsh Language  
Cabinet Steering Group Members with an overview of the reporting framework for the 
Council’s Draft Welsh in Education Strategic Plan,   advising Members of the opportunity to 
comment on the draft WESP and the consultation proposed within, before consideration by 
Cabinet on the 20th July. Members were advised that subject to the decision taken by Cabinet 
it was intended that the Draft WESP would be further presented to the Steering Group prior to 
consideration by cabinet so that the working group could assist in a robust decision making 
process. 
 
The Temporary Service Director 21St Century Schools and Transformation then provided 
Members with further detail in respect 
of the WESP report.  
 
Members were reminded that as well as the target to increase the 
percentage of year one learners in Welsh medium education, the WESP 
includes seven outcomes or areas setting out how Local Authorities are 
expected to improve Welsh medium and Welsh language education in their locality. The priorities are: 
 

8. Outcome 1: More nursery / three year old learners receive their education through the 
medium of Welsh. 

9. Outcome 2: More reception / five year old learners receive their education through the 
medium of Welsh.  

10. Outcome 3: More learners continue to improve their Welsh language skills when 
transferring from one stage of their statutory education to another.  

11. Outcome 4: More learners study for assessed qualifications in Welsh (as a subject) 
and subjects through the medium of Welsh.  

12. Outcome 5: More opportunities for learners to use Welsh in different contexts in 
school. 

Page 5



 

 

13. Outcome 6: An increase in the provision of Welsh medium education for learners with 
additional learning needs. 

14. Outcome 7: Increase the number of teaching staff able to teach Welsh (as a subject) 
and through the medium of Welsh. 

 
Following a detailed overview, discussions ensued. The Chair thanked officers for the detailed 
overview and noted that the WESP has been the culmination of detailed, hard work by Officers, 
complimented with successful partnership engagement with external partners. The Chair was pleased 
to see the longer term view and noted that regular reviews will take place over that 10 year period.  
 
Another Member thanked officers for giving a detailed update and noted that in respect of outcome 5, 
it is important that learners are encouraged to use the Welsh language outside of school settings and 
in the local community. The Member noted the important challenge ahead in terms of getting learners 
to have the confidence to speak Welsh in local businesses and queried how officers were planning on 
meeting this challenge going forward. The Service Manager - Welsh Language Services advised 
Members that the 5 year strategy runs alongside he WESP and emphasised that the Welsh 
Government are eager for the outcomes to run alongside each other. The Service Manager 
emphasised that they are currently in the process of developing a new 5 year plan, which will be ready 
by approximately next Spring. The new 5 year plan will be presented to the Steering Group as soon as 
it has been completed. In respect of local businesses and the challenge of encouraging learners to 
use the Welsh language in the local community, the Service Director emphasised that the service will 
continue to work closely with Council service areas and partners in the community  
 

 
 
 

Following discussion, Members RESOLVED to note the information provided in respect of the 
Council’s Draft Welsh in Education Strategic Plan.   
 

  

6   Urgent Business  
 

 

 There was no urgent business to report.  
 

 

7   Date of Next Meeting  
 

 

 The Chair noted the date of the next meeting to be the 19th October 2021.  
 

 

 
 

This meeting closed at 10.17 am Cllr G Hopkins 
Chairman. 

 

Page 6



 

 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
WELSH LANGUAGE CABINET STEERING GROUP 

 
6 OCTOBER 2021 

 
WELSH LANGUAGE SERVICES - ASSESSMENT REPORT ON THE WELSH 

LANGUAGE PROMOTION STRATEGY AND ACTION PLAN  
 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH, PROTECTION, AND 
COMMUNITY SERVICES IN DISCUSSION WITH THE RELEVANT PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER CLLR G. HOPKINS 

 
 

AUTHORS:  Steffan Gealy, Service Manager, Welsh Language Services (01443 
570002) 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Welsh Language Steering Group 

with an assessment of the Council’s performance against the Welsh Language 
Promotion Strategy, as required under Standard 146 of the Compliance Notice 
issued to Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council under Section 44 of the 
Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011. 

 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

It is recommended that the Welsh Language Cabinet Steering Group: 

 

2.1     Note the content of the report and assessment. 

 

2.2     Consider whether further information is required. 

 

2.3 Approve the assessment’s recommendations.  

 
 
3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1      The Council is required to produce a Five-Year Strategy to facilitate and promote 

the Welsh Language in the county under Standard 145 of the Compliance 

Notice issued under section 44 of the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011.  

 

3.2 As part of the Five-Year Welsh Language Promotion Strategy the Council must: 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



       3.2.1   set a percentage target for increasing or maintaining the number of Welsh  

                  speakers in our area by the end of the 5-year period concerned (currently  

                  set at +6.8% as agreed at the Welsh Language Cabinet Steering Group in 

                  May 2018); 

 

       3.2.2   review the strategy and publish a revised version on its website within 5  

                  years of publishing a strategy; 

 

       3.2.3   assess the extent to which the Council has implemented the strategy and  

                  has reached the target set in terms of the percentage of speakers in our  

                  area; 

 

       3.2.4   publish the assessment on our website, ensuring that it   

                  contains a) the number of Welsh speakers in our area, and the age of those  

                  speakers; and b) a list of the activities that we have arranged or funded  

                  during the previous 5 years to promote the use of the Welsh  

                  language. 

 

3.3     Now that the current strategy has concluded in terms of timescale, it is 

appropriate for the Welsh Language Steering Group to gain an overview of the 

Council’s performance against the Welsh Language Promotion Strategy, as 

required under Standard 146 of the Compliance Notice issued to Rhondda 

Cynon Taf County Borough Council under Section 44 of the Welsh Language 

(Wales) Measure  

 

3.5  Engaging an external organisation that specialises in language planning to 

undertake an independent evaluation has been an opportunity to provide an 

impartial and objective assessment and provide recommendations in respect 

of areas for further development and/or improvement that can be considered 

by Members of the Welsh Language Cabinet Steering Group as the next 

strategy is formulated.  

 

  
4. BACKGROUND 
 
4.1    The current Welsh Language Promotion Strategy was developed over the 

course of 2016 in collaboration with an independent language planning 

consultancy, Menter Iaith and members of Fforwm Iaith, Council Services and 

Elected Members.   

 
4.2     Residents were also consulted to understand what would encourage them to 

use the Welsh language and which services they felt were most important as a 

means of promoting the language. They were also invited to highlight the 

Page 8



activities they felt would support the use of the language. This consultation took 

place between April and July 2016. 

 
4.3      The feedback provided was crucial to the development of the Welsh Language 

Promotion Strategy which focused on: 
 

• growing the number of people able to speak Welsh by 6.8% to 29,670 

by 2021; 

• increasing the use of the Welsh language in all aspects of community 

and public life, and  

• raising awareness of the importance of the Welsh language as an 

essential part of the cultural identity and character of the South Wales 

valleys. 

 

4.4    With the aim of ensuring a successful strategy, an action plan for the strategy 

was agreed by this group and divided into 2 parts: 

 

• Part 1 outlined the activities and targets that the Council was responsible 
for achieving either through direct delivery or through the commissioning 
of services from partner organisations; 
 

• Part 2 outlined the activities and targets that Fforwm Iaith members were 
responsible for achieving under their current funding agreements with 
Welsh Government and other organisations. 

 
4.6 All activities and targets were allocated across the following themes: 

 

• Education – from early years to secondary provision 

• Language transfer in the home 

• Children, young people and families 

• Community activities 

• Welsh in the workplace 

 

4.7     It was agreed by the Welsh Language Chief Officer Group at the beginning of 

July 2016 that a Lead Officer should be identified for each action that was 

allocated against a Council service to ensure accountability.  

 

4.8      Progress against many of the targets identified in the Action Plan were recorded 
during the Council’s annual service self-evaluation process to ensure 
consistency across service area plans without adding to the workload for 
services. This information was then included in the Annual Monitoring Report 
to the Welsh Language Commissioner.  

 

4.9      Following approval by this group in April 2021, Nico Cyf,  an external 

organisation that specialises in language planning was commissioned during 

Page 9



the summer of 2021 to provide an impartial and objective assessment of the 

Council’s Welsh Language Promotion Strategy. 

 

         
5 THE ASSESSMENT  
 
5.1     The assessment (Appendix 1) concludes that the Council has fully met 

standard 145 by setting a target for the percentage of speakers in the area, 
together with outlining details of how the Council would aim to reach that 
target in the form of an action plan for itself and its partners. 

 
5.2     In addition, by undertaking this review of the 5 Year Strategy the Council has 

met the requirement in standard 146 of assessing the extent to which the 
Council has followed the strategy and met set targets. 

 
5.3      The assessment also provides a basis for the work of formulating a revised and 

ambitious 5 Year strategy and Action Plan that will be considered by this 
Steering Group in due course prior to publication. 

 
 
6         EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS / SOCIO-ECONOMIC DUTY 
 
6.1 An Equalities and Diversity / Socio-Economic Impact Assessment is not      
           required for the purposes of this report. 
 
7 WELSH LANGAUGE IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 This report is presented for information purposes only / as a review of the 

Welsh Language Promotion Strategy 2016-2021 in accordance with standard 
146 

 
7.2 A Welsh Language Impact Assessment will be completed as part of writing the 

new strategy in accordance with standards 88, 89 and 90. A public consultation 
is currently being held (1> 30 September 2021) to help shape the new strategy 
and impact assessment. 

 
 
8 CONSULTATION  
 
8.1  A consultation process was undertaken before the Welsh Language Promotion 

Strategy and Action Plan was approved in 2017. 
 
 
9 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
9.1 There are no financial implications aligned to this report. However, there will be 

costs and resources as yet not fully ascertained in respect of implementation of 
any new Strategy and resulting Action Plans. 

 
9.2 Non-compliance with a standard could incur financial penalties of up to £5,000. 

Page 10



 
 
10 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED  
 
10.1 Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and Welsh Language Statutory 

Standards 2015 regulate this area of work. 
 
            
11 LINKS TO THE CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE 

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT. 
 
11.1   The Welsh language is a cross-cutting theme in the Corporate Plan and 

underpins all corporate priorities as the Council is required to comply with the 
amended Compliance Notice issued by the Welsh Language Commissioner in 
September 2016.  

 
11.2  A statutory Annual Compliance Report is submitted to the Welsh Language  

Commissioner outlining the work undertaken by the Council to comply with the 
Welsh language statutory standards that will contribute to the Welsh 
Government’s longer-term goal of 1 million Welsh speakers by 2050. The work 
undertaken to achieve these standards involves working collaboratively with 
partners and residents to facilitate a wide range of opportunities for the use of 
the Welsh language in communities across the county.  

 
11.3   The Welsh language is directly related to Goal 6 of the Well-being of Future 

Generations Act - a Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language. It 
also contributes to the creation of a more equal Wales by providing 
opportunities for Welsh speakers to access Council services in the medium of 
Welsh if they so wish. 

 
 
12       CONCLUSION 
 
12.1 The Council’s priorities in its Welsh Language Promotion Strategy were in line 

with the national vision and based on research and consultation. The targets 
were a natural reflection of the specific needs of the population and highlighted 
a consideration of current provision and existing financial and practical 
constraints.  

 
12.2 The strengths of the Strategy should be celebrated, and good practice shared. 

The strategy was driven by a tailored vision supported by key leadership and 
personnel, together with a robust internal accountability process which also 
included an element of external scrutiny by key partners through the Fforwm 
Iaith. 

 
12.3  The assessment indicates that there are a number of exciting opportunities to 

strengthen the Council's direction with the subsequent strategy, and the 
recommendations in the review (Appendix 1) seek to highlight those 
opportunities for the future. 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 WELSH LANGUAGE PROMOTION STRATEGY - ASSESSMENT

